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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Today's Hearing

          3  is Civil Service and Labor.  My name is Joe Addabbo.

          4    I'll be Chairing the Hearing.  I welcome you all

          5  here today.  Let me also introduce some of the

          6  people of who are sitting with me.  To my right,

          7  Legal Counsel, Diane Blank, to my left, Joan

          8  Povolny, our Policy Analyst.  I want to thank Daniel

          9  Turriago, our Financial Analyst, Steve Adnesio

         10  (phonetic), my Legislative Aide, and I want to thank

         11  the Sergeant-at-Arms for keeping law and order in

         12  this room as well.

         13                 Today's Hearing is in two parts.  The

         14  first part today, we will be hearing Intro. 730, at

         15  the request of Mayor Bloomberg.  A bill that would

         16  amend the Administrative Code for the City of New

         17  York in relation to providing health care insurance

         18  coverage to surviving spouses or domestic partners

         19  and children of deceased DOT workers involved in

         20  roadway repair and maintenance, who died on or after

         21  September 1, 2005 and before September 28, 2005.

         22  The cause of death must be a natural and proximate

         23  result of an accident or injury incurred during the

         24  course of employment.

         25                 Tragically, on September 22, 2005,
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          2  Nick Antico, a 35 year- old DOT worker, was killed

          3  while repairing roadway in Staten Island by a

          4  speeding motorist who left the scene.  Mr. Antico

          5  leaves behind a wife, an eight year- old daughter,

          6  and at this point, on behalf of the Civil Service

          7  and Labor Committee and myself, I extend to the

          8  family my condolences and prayers on their loss.

          9                 In order to give the Mayor the

         10  authority to extend heath care coverage to the

         11  surviving spouse and child, this Committee, at its

         12  earliest, must pass Intro. 730, and will do so

         13  today.  So, again, I'm glad I have the opportunity

         14  to do that.

         15                 Today's second part of the Hearing,

         16  after we do the vote on Intro. 730, will be an

         17  Oversight Hearing on a first annual report issued by

         18  DCAS regarding the civil service eligible lists,

         19  civil service exams, appointments and provisional

         20  appointments as well.

         21                 At this point, I'd like to welcome

         22  Commissioner Weinshall, Commissioner of the

         23  Department of Transportation. Commissioner, thank

         24  you for coming today and it's good to see you.

         25                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Thank you
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          2  Mr. Addabbo and good afternoon Chairman and Members

          3  of the Civil Service and Labor Committee.  I am Iris

          4  Weinshall, Commissioner of the New York City

          5  Department of Transportation.  With me this

          6  afternoon is Marlene Hockstat (phonetic), Assistant

          7  Commissioner for Human Resources at DOT.

          8                 I welcome the opportunity to appear

          9  before you today, to speak in support of Intro. 730,

         10  to amend the Administrative Code of the City of New

         11  York.  As you know, the Department's loss of a

         12  member of its family has prompted the legislation

         13  under consideration today.

         14                 Last month, early on Thursday,

         15  September 22nd, three DOT workers were struck by a

         16  vehicle that plowed through a milling and paving

         17  site on Staten Island and it took the life of 35

         18  year- old Highway Repairer, Nicky Antico.  At his

         19  funeral, the Mayor, hundreds of co-workers, family

         20  members and friends came to say good- bye and mourn

         21  the loss of Nicky, who was affectionately known as

         22  the comedian.  His impersonations were notorious, as

         23  was his habit of throwing on a Mike Myers mask and

         24  working hard to make people laugh.  Nicky was a

         25  Staten Islander who grew up in Brooklyn.  His DOT
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          2  career began in May of 1999, and he was always eager

          3  to lend a hand.  When the World Trade Center fell,

          4  he volunteered at the site, doing everything he

          5  could to put this City back together.

          6                 Intro. 730 will extend health

          7  insurance coverage to Nicky's wife Anna and eight

          8  year- old daughter, Arianna, who he leaves behind.

          9  Further, it will allow the City to recognize Nicky

         10  Antico's dedication to the Department and ease the

         11  financial burden faced by his family who may

         12  otherwise need to obtain separate health insurance

         13  coverage.

         14            I thank you for your expeditious action on

         15  this bill and urge your favorable vote today.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you

         17  Commissioner. Again, it was the intention of this

         18  Committee to hear this bill as soon as possible, so

         19  that we can, as quick as possible, to get the

         20  benefits to the family.  I appreciate your time and

         21  testimony today.  When my colleagues do get here for

         22  a quorum, at any point of the second part of this

         23  Hearing, we will stop that part, we will have the

         24  vote.  As Chair, I do urge a yes vote on that

         25  Intro., so I expect nothing less.  So, Commissioner,
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          2  once again, thank you very much for your time.

          3                 COMMISSIONER WEINSHALL:  Thank you

          4  Councilman.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.  The

          6  second part of today's Hearing is an Oversight

          7  Hearing to review the Department of Citywide

          8  Administrative Services, known as DCAS, and their

          9  first annual report regarding civil service eligible

         10  lists, civil service exams, provisional appointments

         11  and promotions.  This report is a product of this

         12  Committee's Hearing held on May 7, 2004, regarding

         13  the one and three rule and the subsequent

         14  legislation that followed that Hearing, which led to

         15  the creation of that annual report.

         16                 The intention of that annual report

         17  was to uphold the merit and fitness requirements of

         18  the City employees and to help ensure that the

         19  hiring process is competitive and fair. This annual

         20  report is to include, but is not limited to,

         21  information on each eligible list created during the

         22  year; the dates they were established; the number of

         23  persons appointed or promoted from the eligible

         24  lists, and the agencies; the number of persons

         25  appointed or promoted on a provisional basis and
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          2  their agencies; the number of persons considered and

          3  not selected three times from the promotional list;

          4  the number of persons removed from the eligible and

          5  promotion list and the reason; the number of persons

          6  restored to the eligible list and promotion list.

          7                 On June 2, 2005, the first annual

          8  report was delivered by DCAS.  We would like to call

          9  DCAS up at this point, to the witness stand, to

         10  discuss this first annual report.  At this point, we

         11  have, from DCAS, Stephen Dobrowsky and Mitchell

         12  Paluszek.  I appreciate your time gentlemen, thank

         13  you very much for being here and to discuss this

         14  first annual report, which, again, this Committee

         15  was very interested in receiving and taking a look

         16  at.  I'm hopeful that in the future, it will be a

         17  useful tool, but, at this point, I'd like to hear

         18  from you as well.

         19                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Good afternoon

         20  Chairman Addabbo and Members of the Committee on

         21  Civil Service and Labor.  I am Stephen Dobrowsky,

         22  Director of Certification in the Division of

         23  Citywide Personnel Services at the Department of

         24  Citywide Administrative Services, also known as

         25  DCAS.  I'm joined by my colleague, Mitchell
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          2  Paluszek, Deputy General Counsel for Personnel Legal

          3  Matters at DCAS.

          4                 It is my pleasure, it is my pleasure

          5  to be here again and I thank you for this

          6  opportunity to provide the Committee with a review

          7  of the annual report that we generated pursuant to

          8  Local Law 50 of 2004.

          9                 As required by Section 12- 206 of the

         10  New York City Administrative Code, DCAS submitted an

         11  annual report to the Mayor, Comptroller, Public

         12  Advocate and Speaker of the City Council on June 1,

         13  2005, regarding civil service eligible lists

         14  established during calendar year 2004 and the

         15  various information on the use of eligible lists by

         16  agencies.  The law specifically requires seven sets

         17  of statistics.

         18                 Administrative Code Section 12- 206,

         19  subsection (b)(1) and (b)(2), require that the

         20  report include information regarding each eligible

         21  list established during 2004, and the dates such

         22  eligible lists were established.  During 2004, 55

         23  open- competitive eligible lists were established

         24  and 154 agencies and division promotion lists were

         25  established.

                                                            11

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2                 Administrative Code Section 12- 206,

          3  subsection (b)(3), requires that the report include

          4  information regarding the number of persons

          5  appointed or promoted from each eligible list, and

          6  the agencies to which such appointments or

          7  promotions were made.  During 2004, there were a

          8  total of 12,290 such appointments and promotions

          9  made by 46 different agencies.

         10                 Administrative Code Section 12- 206,

         11  subsection (b)(4), requires that the report include

         12  information regarding the number of persons

         13  appointed or promoted on a provisional basis during

         14  the reporting year and the agencies to which such

         15  appointments were made.  During 2004, there were

         16  7,037 provisional appointments and 1,861 provisional

         17  promotions, totaling 8,898 provisional actions.

         18                 Administrative Code Section 12- 206,

         19  subsection (b)(5), requires that the report include

         20  information regarding the number of persons who were

         21  considered and not selected, also referred to as

         22  being CNS'ed, three times from the promotion lists

         23  during the reporting year.  The report includes

         24  those persons who were CNS'ed three times in 2004.

         25  Because, however, the three considerations to which
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          2  a candidate may be entitled while on a promotion

          3  list do not necessarily occur in one calendar year,

          4  the report also includes those persons who were

          5  CNS'ed the third time and last time in 2004.  Using

          6  these parameters, 709 candidates were CNS'ed for a

          7  third time during 2004.

          8                 Administrative Code Section 12- 206,

          9  subsection (b)(6), requires that the report include

         10  information regarding the number of persons removed

         11  from eligible lists and the number of persons

         12  removed from promotion lists and the reason reported

         13  to DCAS for such removal.  Both temporary and

         14  permanent removals are included in this report.

         15                 Temporary removals, sometimes

         16  referred to as offside actions, may occur for a

         17  variety of reasons, including failure to report for

         18  an interview, failure to report for a medical or

         19  physical test, declination of an appointment, or

         20  failure to report to work after appointment.  After

         21  a temporary removal, a candidate can, upon request,

         22  automatically have his or her name restored to the

         23  eligible list three times.

         24                 A permanent removal from an eligible

         25  list occurs after the fourth offside action.  The
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          2  report shows a total of 16,825 removal actions

          3  during 2004, 66 permanent removal actions and 16,759

          4  temporary removal actions.

          5                 Lastly, Administrative Code 12- 206,

          6  subsection (b)(7), requires that the report include

          7  information regarding the number of persons restored

          8  to eligible lists and the number of persons restored

          9  to promotion lists after having been removed. In

         10  2004, there were 87 instances where individuals who

         11  were CNS'ed three times were restored to a list at

         12  the request of an agency, and there were 1,814

         13  instances where persons temporarily removed from

         14  lists were subsequently restored.

         15                 Please bear in mind that because a

         16  person may be restored to a list on more than one

         17  occasion during a reporting year, this statistic

         18  reflects the total number of restoration actions in

         19  the reporting year, and not the number of persons

         20  restored to eligible lists.

         21                 Thank you again for this opportunity

         22  to testify on the Local Law 50 annual report.  We

         23  will be happy to answer any questions you might

         24  have.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  All right.
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          2  Thank you very much.  Mitchell Paluszek, any

          3  statement at this time or? Questions, okay.  At this

          4  point, I'd like to welcome our Council Member

          5  Committee Member Sarah Gonzalez, thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Couple questions.  Just generally,

          8  we'll talk generally first and then get into

          9  specifics of the report.  Did you find this as a

         10  useful tool? Doing this kind of report? Again, this

         11  is the first time, I understand, that this report is

         12  done in a written form.  At that May 2004 Hearing, I

         13  had heard that it was all verbal prior to being in

         14  this form, in the form of a statement by DCAS.  Do

         15  you find it as a useful tool as far as checking up

         16  on other agencies and seeing if, again, the

         17  compliance about examinations and promotions and

         18  hiring?

         19                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, we have a

         20  number of reports that we rely on to carry out our

         21  operations.  This report does consolidate all of the

         22  actions from the certifications in one report.  So,

         23  in that respect, it is helpful.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Does it make it

         25  easier to troubleshoot any problem areas or concerns
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          2  as far as the frequency of examinations or agencies

          3  and their hiring practices?

          4                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, actually, when

          5  we look at our operations, we operate from a

          6  perspective of looking at what happens with a

          7  specific title.  So, we can see from our, from our

          8  reports, which agencies have or have not utilized

          9  the list and the time frame that the agencies take

         10  in which to return the list.  So, that's primarily

         11  what we refer to.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  When looking at

         13  the information culminated from this report, any

         14  areas of concern? Do you look at this report and

         15  say, well, here's an area that we have to pay

         16  attention to, or here's an area maybe an exam or an

         17  agency, you know, here's an area that we have to pay

         18  attention to?  Is there anything that came to your

         19  attention as far as a future problem area?

         20                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Actually, most of the

         21  information in the report comes from reports that we

         22  already work from.  So, they're our primary source

         23  of information in terms of how we approach this.

         24  These reports that we work with, we generate on the

         25  weekly, bi- weekly basis, so it's, it's real time
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          2  perspective that we, we can operate from.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again though,

          4  with this, I understand where you got the

          5  information from, and again I appreciate the detail

          6  of the report with regards to numbers and obviously

          7  explanations.  But, again, the question is, do you

          8  see from this report that there are areas of concern

          9  for DCAS?  That there are certain agencies or

         10  procedures that need to be paid attention to because

         11  something in this report threw up a flag or anything

         12  like that?

         13                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, actually, we,

         14  what is reflected in these reports, we've already

         15  seen during the course of the year.  This, this

         16  summarizes --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Sure.

         18                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  -- What we had --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any concerns?

         20  Any concerns for DCAS?

         21                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  None that we didn't

         22  have beforehand.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  What did you

         24  have beforehand?  Any other concerns beforehand?

         25                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, beforehand, we
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          2  knew that there were certain titles where we had to

          3  push agencies to use the list and this just

          4  confirmed that.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  If I may, Mr.

          6  Dobrowsky, what titles, what agencies are you, do

          7  you refer to?

          8                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  The titles that I was

          9  concerned with were, are the clerical titles.  The

         10  agencies, I don't recall off hand, but we would like

         11  to see some greater activity on those titles.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  No agencies

         13  comes to mind at this point?

         14                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  Not off- hand.  You

         15  can tell from the report on appointments, that there

         16  have been significant appointments made from those

         17  lists and we can see that agencies have been moving,

         18  but we continue to monitor the activity.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  What is, in a

         20  related question, what is some of the criteria,

         21  because, again, these lists are generated obviously

         22  from exams, what is the criteria for the frequency

         23  of exams?

         24                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  There are actually

         25  several things we look at.  Primary for us is public
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          2  safety.  So, we are always concerned about having

          3  lists in place for the uniformed forces, police,

          4  fire, sanitation, the Triborough Bridge Tunnel

          5  Authority offices and so on.  So, that's sort of at

          6  the top of our hierarchy in terms of priorities.

          7                 Health titles are another major

          8  consideration, titles for the Health Department.

          9  Also, Social Service titles for the Department of

         10  Social Services, Department of Homeless Services,

         11  the Agency for Children's Services.  We're concerned

         12  that those titles be properly staffed and that lists

         13  be made available for those agencies.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Do you find

         15  that these agencies, these New York City agencies

         16  are calling from these lists?

         17                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  Yes, they are.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Are you

         19  confident enough that they are calling, you know,

         20  with regularity and, again, compliance, that they

         21  are calling from these lists?

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Yes, yes, we see that

         23  they are using the lists.  They are making progress

         24  and making appointments.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Any agency that
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          2  you are concerned with, at this time, that they are

          3  not calling from the lists or that, again, you need

          4  to address a certain City agency with regards to

          5  compliance?

          6                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  Not any agency

          7  specifically.  We see activity from all the agencies

          8  and that's, you know, certainly heartening.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  When we're

         10  talking about exams and the frequency of exams and,

         11  again, I appreciate the public safety and health-

         12  related issues, when we find an exam hasn't been

         13  given for more than five years in a certain title,

         14  how can we address the issue about the frequency of

         15  that exam, that has not been issued in five, ten, 15

         16  years?

         17                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, we certainly

         18  try to give an examination for every title within a

         19  reasonable period of time --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I'm sorry Mr.

         21  Dobrowsky, what would be considered reasonable?

         22  Just so, we have an idea.

         23                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  I guess five years

         24  would be roughly --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay, so if you
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          2  have a title that's beyond five years, and I'm

          3  talking not six or seven, I'm talking 15, ten, or

          4  along those lines, again, how can we address that?

          5                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  Well, we certainly

          6  try to reach those titles.  However, we sometimes

          7  come up with situations where all of a sudden

          8  there's a priority.  We've come across this with the

          9  Agency for Children's Services, where we certainly

         10  had to classify as, some new titles, give

         11  examinations for those titles because of our efforts

         12  to staff that agency adequately. There are times

         13  when we have to give another examination for,

         14  because of litigation purposes or in response to a

         15  litigation.

         16                 Another criteria that we look at is

         17  the total number of provisionals that we have in a

         18  title.  So, even though sometimes where may be an

         19  exam that has not been held for a few years, there

         20  may be very few or no provisionals serving in that

         21  title and that, that examination is, goes down,

         22  further down in the order of priority.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  If I may

         24  get to some of the more detailed numbers in the

         25  report and, basically, I'm looking for here is your
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          2  opinion about, professional opinion, about these

          3  numbers and maybe a comparison of, you know, a prior

          4  year, if they are more or less, again, if there's

          5  any fluctuation, maybe an unreasonable fluctuation

          6  in these numbers. Again, 55 open- competitive

          7  eligible lists were established in the year 2004.

          8  So, 55 open- competitive eligible lists and 154

          9  agency and division promotion lists were

         10  established.  On par for last year, higher or lower?

         11                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  I would have to say

         12  that's probably about the same.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again, I'm

         14  going to find that future reports of this would be

         15  helpful in determining these as well.  Obviously,

         16  we'll have it in some documentation form that we can

         17  compare as well.  But, I appreciate, again, just

         18  maybe off the top of your head, these numbers as

         19  well.

         20                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  As far as

         22  appointments are concerned, in 2004 there were

         23  12,290 appointments and promotions. Again, on par

         24  for last year?  Higher or lower?

         25                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  I think it's sort of
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          2  on par.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  CNS'ed, 709

          4  persons, and I understand your explanation about CNS

          5  and that with regards to the given year.  But,

          6  again, 709 persons for the third time in 2004.

          7                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That I really

          8  couldn't address.  I would really have to take a

          9  look at data for previous years.  I just don't have

         10  that information.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  At this point,

         12  again, I would like to express my appreciation for

         13  DCAS in previous conversations prior to this

         14  Hearing, mentioning that obviously any issues that

         15  do come up here that are unable to be answered, we

         16  will follow- up with this and that DCAS has agreed

         17  to, at least, leave somebody in the room while we

         18  have future testimony. Because, obviously, issues

         19  may come up subsequent to your testimony.  So, I

         20  appreciate the follow- up after this Hearing.

         21                 With regards to persons being

         22  restored to the list, in 2004, there were 87

         23  instances where individuals who were CNS'ed three

         24  times, were restored at the request of an agency,

         25  and there were roughly 1,800 instances where persons
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          2  removed from the list were subsequently restored.

          3  Again, the restoration numbers, are they on par or

          4  slightly higher or lower?

          5                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Again, I don't have

          6  the data for previous years.  I could --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  There's

          8  going to be, obviously, this is important for this

          9  Committee to address this issue, obviously, to see

         10  if there's any pattern, any, you know, unreasonable

         11  fluctuations --

         12                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Sure.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  -- And, again,

         14  we're going to have to follow this up after this

         15  Hearing.  With removals, 16,000 persons were removed

         16  from the eligible list in 2004.  It's a lot of

         17  people, 16,825.  Do you feel that that's a high

         18  number? Do you feel that's on par with subsequent

         19  years?

         20                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  I'm, that's still has

         21  to be put into context of the number of people that

         22  we certify during, during a year.  In 2004, we

         23  certified over 297,000 people.  The removal from a

         24  list can occur because somebody did not want a

         25  particular job or they may have failed to even
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          2  report for a position.  So, in the context of the

          3  overall number of actions that we do have in one

          4  year, 16,000 is not necessarily a very high number.

          5                 MR. PALUSZEK:  And, also, if I may

          6  add, it must be borne in mind that that's not 16,000

          7  individuals who've been removed from a list.  That's

          8  16,000 removal actions and people can be removed on

          9  several occasions in one particular year.  So, don't

         10  think of them as 16,000 distinct individuals.  It's

         11  16,000 removal actions, which somebody could, for

         12  example, decline a position, be restored and decline

         13  a position all in one year and that would be counted

         14  as two removal actions.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That was

         16  explained in the report and I appreciate that.

         17  Lastly, of the detailed numbers, provisionals,

         18  during 2004, 8,898 provisional actions, of which

         19  7,000 were provisional appointments and roughly

         20  1,800 were provisional promotions.  Any unreasonable

         21  high number of provisionals on that list at all?  Or

         22  is it, again, you feel that that's acceptable for

         23  DCAS?

         24                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, the overall

         25  trend for provisionals in the City is going down.
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          2  So, that's certainly a good, a good sign.  But, once

          3  again, I don't have the statistics for the previous

          4  year, so I can't really answer whether or not that's

          5  higher or lower than it had been.  But, just based

          6  on the overall trend, I would have to assume that

          7  that's less than what we had previously.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Question

          9  from Council Member Gonzalez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Good

         11  afternoon.  How are you?  Thank you so much.  I just

         12  want to understand, in respect to the list and I

         13  probably missed it, but, is it broken down into

         14  districts?  Is it a whole City list?  Or, for

         15  example, when there's a number of 16,820 removed,

         16  what was the original number?

         17                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  Okay, that refers to

         18  all of the removals from all of the lists that we

         19  had in place --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  From every

         21  list?

         22                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  From every list,

         23  that's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  And every

         25  list would be approximately how many numbers?  I
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          2  mean, if, you know --

          3                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  It varies.  We have,

          4  some lists may have two or three people, some lists

          5  have tens of thousands of people.  So, it's really

          6  hard to --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  So, we

          8  don't, we can't pinpoint a number, we don't have a

          9  number, is that?

         10                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  We, during that,

         11  during 2004, we established the, you know the

         12  number.  In addition, we had a number of other lists

         13  had been established in previous years, from which

         14  we also used in 2004.  So, we may be talking about

         15  well over 300 lists in total from which we make

         16  appointments --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  From

         18  previous years --

         19                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That's correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  -- Or one

         21  year?

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  From previous years,

         23  yes --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  So, 16,820

         25  or 25 would be from several years, not just one
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          2  year.

          3                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That's from one, 16

          4  is from 2004. But, we have other lists that were

          5  established in prior years and some of those offside

          6  actions may have occurred from those lists also.

          7  Lists run for four years.  So, during 2000 --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  So, it

          9  could be like a zillion, I mean, I don't know, I'm

         10  just --

         11                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That would be a lot.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  -- I'm

         13  just, you know, we don't have a number, in other

         14  words?

         15                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  I don't, at this

         16  point, I don't know how many, the total is.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Okay, you

         18  know, my thought process, right away, is district,

         19  you know, we think the whole City, but, as a

         20  district, you know, how many numbers and how many

         21  removals and, you know, that sort of thing, so.

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Yeah.  Those, that

         23  number reflects a total number of removals from all

         24  the lists that were used --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  For
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          2  different reasons, for example.

          3                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That's, that's

          4  correct, right, some people --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Either

          6  they've lost interest or they have another position

          7  or.

          8                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Correct, that's

          9  right, exactly.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Okay.

         11  Thank you.

         12                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  You're welcome.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Thank you

         14  Chair.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you

         16  Council Member Gonzalez.  If an agency feels that,

         17  well, if there is a unusually high number of

         18  provisionals, how can DCAS address the provisional

         19  issue with a certain agency, if there's maybe,

         20  again, an unreasonable amount of provisionals on a

         21  certain agency?

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, we first, our

         23  primary tool is we certify the list through the

         24  agency to see what happens. If the list comes back

         25  with insufficient number of appointments or if the
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          2  certification is not used, we get in contact with

          3  the agency.  We remind them that they have

          4  provisional serving, that the law requires that

          5  those provisionals be removed and we certify the

          6  list out to the agency again and we monitor that

          7  process.

          8                 So, it's a continual effort in terms

          9  of certifying lists to agencies that have

         10  provisionals, monitoring their use of those

         11  certifications and following- up with those agencies

         12  to remind them that if they still have provisionals

         13  serving, they have to use the list again.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Dobrowsky,

         15  in the recent history, given maybe the past year,

         16  over the past year, have you had to have that

         17  discussion with any City agency?

         18                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  We have had both oral

         19  and, in some cases, written discussions with

         20  agencies, reminding them that they must use the

         21  list.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Within the past

         23  year or so?

         24                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Yes, that's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  What agency? If
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          2  I may.

          3                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  One that comes to

          4  mind is the Transit Authority.  We've notified them

          5  that they have provisionals serving in some titles

          6  and are required to use the list that we had sent

          7  them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Given your

          9  conversations with Transit, at that time, have they

         10  seem to have responded to your discussion?

         11                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  In some cases, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I'm guessing

         13  it's still an issue for DCAS and it's, again, still

         14  being discussed with Transit?

         15                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Broad-

         17  banding, basically, does DCAS have the power to have

         18  agencies promote on different levels to avoid,

         19  obviously, certain levels becoming stagnant?

         20                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  The Commissioner of

         21  DCAS does have the authority.

         22                 MR. PALUSZEK:  I'm not quite sure I

         23  understand your question Councilman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Certain levels

         25  obviously not being promoted, upper mobility, broad-
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          2  banding, combining of titles.

          3                 MR. PALUSZEK:  That's one of DCAS'

          4  primary responsibilities, is how to classify a

          5  title, to decide whether one task should be done by

          6  one job or several tasks can be done by one job.

          7  Also, the promotional opportunities, should it be

          8  one title with four levels or four different

          9  promotional opportunities, that is a DCAS

         10  responsibility.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Has DCAS, over

         12  the past year, addressed that issue with certain

         13  agencies?  If so, what agencies?

         14                 MR. PALUSZEK:  I think we'd have to

         15  get back to you on that.  I can't think of any off

         16  the top of my head.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  What is the

         18  notification process?  Somebody gets CNS'ed,

         19  somebody gets dropped from the list, what is the

         20  notification process?

         21                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  The agency's required

         22  to send that person a letter, stating that the

         23  person has been CNS'ed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  With reason?

         25  Do they state a reason or just basically --
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          2                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  There's, no reason is

          3  required for a CNS action.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  How long is it,

          5  usually, between a person passes the exam and then

          6  placed on a list?  What is usually the time frame?

          7                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  From passing the

          8  exam, you mean from when the person sits and takes

          9  the examination --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right, until

         11  the person gets on a list.

         12                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That varies,

         13  depending on the number of considerations.  One is,

         14  we have, as you know, the, an appeals process and a

         15  protest process.  The protest process is mandated by

         16  a State Civil Service Law.  Depending on the number

         17  of protests that we receive, that may, in some

         18  cases, lengthen the period of time in which it takes

         19  to establish a list.  Rough ballpark figure might be

         20  nine months or so in which to establish a list from

         21  the time the examination is given.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Now, we've

         23  spoken about the frequency of the exams.  After the

         24  exam is given, does DCAS have any concerns at all,

         25  not so much with the frequency of the exams, but
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          2  once the exam is given and taken, getting that

          3  person from, the person who passed the exam, onto a

          4  list and basically chosen from the list.  Does DCAS

          5  have any concerns, the procedural time frame or at

          6  all, any concerns from DCAS at all regarding --

          7                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  We certainly try to

          8  expedite each step of the process in terms of the

          9  rating of the examination, the, the reconciliation

         10  of the protest process and then the certification

         11  process, in which we send the lists out to the

         12  agencies and hopefully expect to see some

         13  appointments made.  So, each step of the process we

         14  try to expedite, but there are times when, depending

         15  on the volume, it may just be somewhat, it may take

         16  somewhat longer than we expect.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Right, and at

         18  this current time, you're pretty much confident that

         19  the agencies are looking at the list, are calling

         20  from those lists, correct?

         21                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  We are sending the

         22  agencies out to, every list that has provisional

         23  serving and we monitor the use of the list.  We

         24  check to see what happens when the list comes back

         25  to us, whether or not it's being used or not, and we

                                                            34

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  send it out to those agencies where we see, where

          3  the agency has not utilized the list to the extent

          4  it should.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  When an agency

          6  is not complying with the list, again, just so I'm

          7  clear, DCAS' recourse is basically discussion with

          8  that agency, correct?

          9                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That's correct.  We

         10  remind them that they have provisional serving, that

         11  they are required to use the list by law, that

         12  provisionals cannot continue to serve once the list

         13  has been established for a period beyond four

         14  months, and certify the list to them, urge them to

         15  use the list to either replace their provisionals or

         16  make sufficient appointments to exhaust the list.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again, it's my

         18  belief that this report is going to be a very useful

         19  tool.  Again, with the first report, it sort of sets

         20  a standard and, you know, this Committee will

         21  follow- up with DCAS.  To me, it's an important

         22  useful tool, not only for this Committee and maybe

         23  even for DCAS, but for the, you know, hundreds of

         24  thousands, if not more, obviously individuals on

         25  these lists who are depending upon these lists to
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          2  be, you know, moved so obviously they can see

          3  advancement and it's a livelihood for many.  So,

          4  again, I appreciate your time and I appreciate your

          5  follow- up post this Hearing.  Any other questions

          6  from Council Member Gonzalez.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Well, yes.

          8  I just wanted to go back a little bit with the

          9  appeals process and the protest process that you

         10  stated.  Is there a policy sort of in writing, a

         11  protocol in respect to this that you look at?

         12                 Because, obviously, from what I'm

         13  hearing, you're sort of keeping an eye in respect to

         14  the other agencies, your department, to ensure that

         15  this is happening or that there, is it an ongoing, I

         16  guess, policy?  That's what I'm saying.  Is it in a

         17  protocol that you follow?  For example, whatever

         18  office it is, let's say, I don't know, Sanitation,

         19  I'm just, you know, do you poll them?  Is there is a

         20  certain time of the year that you do that?  Is, you

         21  know, or is it just ongoing?

         22                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Actually, the protest

         23  and appeals process I refer to was part of the

         24  examination process.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Exactly.
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          2                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Once we give the

          3  examination, the people who take that examination

          4  get a chance to look at what we call the proposed

          5  key.  Those are the answers that we have, that we

          6  judge to be the correct answers.  They can then

          7  submit protests to DCAS against those answers.  They

          8  can say that, you know, that not only is A a good

          9  answer, but B is just as good, and they'll give us

         10  their rationale as to why that's so.

         11                 This protest process is mandated by

         12  State Law. There's a 30- day period during which the

         13  people who took the test can submit a protest to

         14  DCAS against a key.  That's sort of the first phase

         15  of the examination process where we examine all of

         16  these protests.  The protests have to be reviewed by

         17  a committee of three members, including one person

         18  nominated by the collective bargaining agent for

         19  that title, as well as, generally, we have someone

         20  from DCAS chairing the panel and a third independent

         21  member, so we can resolve any differences, if there

         22  are.

         23                 This process can take anywhere from a

         24  day to several months, depending on the number of

         25  protests that we receive.  We can have, where we
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          2  have a large examination with a larger number of

          3  people taking it, we can get thousands of protests

          4  and this can take months to resolve.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Or it could

          6  fluctuate, in other words, it's not something that's

          7   --

          8                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  That's correct, it

          9  varies.  On some examinations, we receive no

         10  protest, on other examinations, we receive thousands

         11  of protests.  So, it changes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Okay.  I

         13  just want to thank you.  I just want to go back to

         14  the re- classifying, how often, is that the same

         15  situation and are you sort of, the way I see it, is

         16  sort of you're the quality assurance to ensure that,

         17  yeah.

         18                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  The re-

         19  classification of titles, that's sort of an ongoing

         20  effort.  Some of this comes to us from agencies,

         21  where agencies advise us that there are changes in,

         22  for example, technology or changes in procedures or

         23  whatnot, which suddenly the titles that we have

         24  currently existing no longer fit the structure or no

         25  longer fit the jobs as they are constructed. So, we
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          2  look at then changing the title structure at that

          3  point.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you

          6  Council Member Gonzalez.  I'd like to welcome

          7  Council Member Seabrook to the Committee Hearing,

          8  thank you.  Just a couple more questions, if I may,

          9  gentlemen.  Some unions still maintain that agencies

         10  are not restoring names to the agency's eligibility

         11  list.  Have you heard anything about that?  Is there

         12  something that DCAS is doing regarding that issue?

         13                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, the, there were

         14  two restorations.  One restoration, I assume you're

         15  referring to the CNS restorations.  That's a

         16  discretionary action on the part of an agency.  DCAS

         17  does not play any role in that at all.  An eligible

         18  that has been CNS'ed three times by an agency can

         19  petition the agency to be restored to the list and

         20  it's, it's up to the agency to either grant that

         21  request or not.  We, at DCAS, administratively will

         22  then place a person on the list, but we play no role

         23  in the decision- making process.  That's outside of

         24  our purview.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I would have a
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          2  lot more confidence if DCAS would play a bigger

          3  part.  You know, the word discretion concerns me

          4  greatly.  No oversight at all on DCAS on this?

          5  Because, discretion, when you have an agency use

          6  discretion, to me, it opens up a pandora's box of

          7  impropriety. Does DCAS use any amount of oversight

          8  on that at all?

          9                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  We really have no

         10  role in that. There is great deference in civil

         11  service law paid to the appointing officer of an

         12  agency.  We can, we have an administrative function,

         13  but we don't have a decision- making function in

         14  that process.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Who would have

         16  a decision making function, other than the agency,

         17  who would have --

         18                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  It's the agencies,

         19  sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Nothing under

         21  State Law would control that at all?

         22                 MR. PALUSZEK:  Our rules, the rules

         23  that we operate under, provide that a name will not

         24  be given, will be given to an agency three times and

         25  only three times, unless the appointing authority
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          2  asks for the name again.  Therefore, we won't, we

          3  wouldn't know those occasions when an individual

          4  asks to be restored to the list and is refused.  We

          5  don't, we have no record of that number, and there's

          6  role under our, under the rules as they are

          7  currently written and they've been approved by the

          8  State for any involvement in the decision- making

          9  process on the part of an agency to restore a name

         10  after a third CNS.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  So, any change

         12  would have to be on the State Law level, which has

         13  jurisdiction of the City.

         14                 MR. PALUSZEK:  It would need, it

         15  would need a change in our rules, which have the

         16  force and effect of law because they have been

         17  approved by the State Civil Service Commissioner.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Lastly,

         19  gentlemen, if I may, you just touched upon

         20  provisionals.  Can you just address the number of

         21  provisionals, generally speaking, not part of the

         22  report, but just generally, the number of

         23  provisionals appointed and retained?  Do you see

         24  that this is an issue that needs to be addressed by

         25  DCAS as it relates generally to the agencies?
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          2                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Well, it is an issue

          3  that falls within our purview and you can see from

          4  the report there are, numbers are what they are.

          5  But, it should be pointed out that that also is a,

          6  sort of a snapshot of the actions that occurred

          7  during the course of a year.  So, even if a

          8  provisional, for example, had been appointed in

          9  January, if a list was established later on in the

         10  year, that provisional could have been replaced.

         11                 So, what we did, was we reported

         12  every such action, but the report does not indicate

         13  what the outcome, the final outcome or the dynamics

         14  of those actions are.  In some cases, you can see

         15  from the report, that lists were established in

         16  December of the year.  So, during the 11 months

         17  early in the year, provisionals could have been

         18  appointed and we have no indication of, on the

         19  report, of what happened to those provisionals

         20  because the lists were not established until

         21  December of the year.

         22                 So, while we certainly do whatever we

         23  can to replace provisionals through the process of

         24  giving examinations and certifying lists to the

         25  agencies, the report does not truly reflect all of
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          2  what has happened during the course of a year.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Within the

          4  course of a year, actually in the course of many

          5  years, sometimes you see provisionals, again, with

          6  the provisional title, still staying on for many,

          7  many years.  Does that throw up a red flag to DCAS

          8  at all?  So you look at those situations where

          9  provisionals stay on for many, many years?

         10                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Yes, we look at that.

         11    We give examinations for those titles to try

         12  replace those provisionals to the extent we can.

         13  Some cases, we have titles where lists don't provide

         14  us with sufficient number of people on the list to

         15  replace the provisionals and that's of concern to

         16  us.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  According to

         18  your report, there are some job titles that have a

         19  disproportionate of provisional appointments and

         20  provisional promotions.  Something like, for one,

         21  I'm looking at one, 361 provisional appointments,

         22  but only two promotions.  When the disparity is that

         23  much, on either way, either the appointments or the

         24  promotions, again, does that throw up a red flag?

         25                 See, what I'm hoping was, this report
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          2  would have, you know, raised an eyebrow once or

          3  twice to DCAS, when you see it in writing, as

          4  opposed to prior to this report, everything, I

          5  understand, was pretty much verbal or the

          6  information was scattered.  Now, with this one

          7  report, can you see a disproportionate number of

          8  provisional appointments and promotions, does that

          9  raise a flag?  Does that raise a concern?

         10                 MR. DOBROWKSY:  Well, it depends on

         11  the title. When you have an entry level title, you

         12  would expect to see provisional appointments rather

         13  than provisional promotions because those, there is

         14  no title that can be promoted from, so they're

         15  coming in from the outside.

         16                 Where you have a promotional title,

         17  you should see, you should see the reverse, because

         18  there are lower, there are employees in lower titles

         19  that can be provisionally promoted up.  So, that

         20  probably accounts for most of the, most of that

         21  figure.

         22                 Sometimes, you also have a situation

         23  where if a title is relatively recently created, you

         24  will also have the situation where there are people

         25  coming from the outside.  So, you're going to see a
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          2  lot of provisional appointments and relative few, if

          3  any, provisional promotions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Dobrowsky,

          5  your statements are based on the usual, the average

          6  or the standard. Again, in this report, have you

          7  seen where there's a wide variety or a big gap

          8  between the promotions and the appointments?  Again,

          9  has there been a situation, based on this report,

         10  where you looked at a job title and say, wait, the

         11  numbers, they are a little out of the ordinary or

         12  not standard as per your explanation?

         13                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Not really.  Where we

         14  have seen some change, some, where the numbers look

         15  somewhat fuzzy, there's an explanation, either

         16  there's no list in place, or the situation was, as I

         17  had explained, that it's an entry level title, so

         18  there are no, very few provisional promotions in the

         19  title, or if it's a promotion title, there will be

         20  very few provisional appointments.  You will see

         21  mainly provisional promotions.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Again, with

         23  this first report, this first annual report, it sort

         24  of sets a standard.  I do look forward to future

         25  conversations regarding this report and some of its
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          2  numbers, as these numbers do tell a story, again, in

          3  making sure that these jobs are truly competitive

          4  and fair and that the procedure is truly competitive

          5  and fair.  So, I look forward to future

          6  conversations with DCAS.  At this point any further

          7  questions from my colleagues?  No?  Okay.

          8  Gentlemen, thank you very much for your time and

          9  testimony.

         10                 MR. DOBROWSKY:  Thank you Council

         11  Member.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I appreciate

         13  it.  At this point, before I bring up the next

         14  panel, since we do have a quorum, I'd like to call a

         15  vote on Intro. 730.  Again, this is authorized in

         16  the Mayor to grant DOT worker, the surviving family

         17  of the DOT worker the health insurance benefits.  As

         18  Chair of the Committee of Civil Service and Labor, I

         19  do urge a yes vote on Intro. 730.  If I can have the

         20  role call please.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         22  Addabbo:

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Seabrook.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gonzalez.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of three in

          5  the affirmative, zero in the negative, no

          6  abstentions, Introduction 730 is adopted.  Council

          7  Members, please sign the Committee Report.  Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I want to thank

         10  you very much Council Members for being here.  The

         11  next panel, we have a panel of six, I believe, so we

         12  may, Sergeant- at- Arms, please add two more chairs.

         13    I would like to call up John Mueller, Jon

         14  Forester, Forster, I'm sorry, Jon Forster, Elaine

         15  Garcia, Liz Eastman, Joshua Barnett and Claude Fort.

         16    Please step forward.  I want to thank you all for

         17  being here today.  If you would please, just state

         18  your name and your affiliation and give your

         19  testimony, I'd appreciate it.  Thank you.  Just hit

         20  the red button.

         21                 MR. FORT:  Sorry.  Good afternoon

         22  everyone.  My name is Claude Fort.  I'm the

         23  President of Local 375, affiliate of DC- 37.  We

         24  represent 7,000 members, architects, engineers,

         25  scientists, chemists, city planners and the, and the
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          2  all the technical professionals.

          3                 MS. EASTMAN:  Good afternoon.  My

          4  name is Liz Eastman.  I am a member of Local 375 and

          5  I'm also an employee of HPD, Housing Preservation

          6  and Development.

          7                 MS. GARCIA:  My name is Elaine

          8  Garcia.  I'm a Membership Chair for Local 375.  I'm

          9  also an employee of HPD, Housing Preservation and

         10  Development.

         11                 MR. BARNETT:  My name is Josh

         12  Barnett.  I'm the Civil Service Chair for Local 375

         13  and also Construction Project Manager with the New

         14  York City Housing Authority.

         15                 MR. MUELLER:  My name is John

         16  Mueller.  I'm a Forester with the Parks Department.

         17  I'm a Member of Local 375.

         18                 MR. FORSTER:  My name is Jon Forster.

         19    I'm the First Vice- President of Local 375.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I appreciate

         21  you all being here, for your time and testimony.

         22  Please, if you can, again, state your name and just

         23  give your testimony.

         24                 MR. FORT:  Thank you very much,

         25  Chairman Addabbo, for having us here tonight.  The
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          2  issue of civil service exams, civil service lists,

          3  frequency of exams, promotions, has been and

          4  continue to be a big issue for Local 375.  We cover

          5  about 200 titles in about 36 different agencies in

          6  New York City.  We have about more than 1,000

          7  provisionals working in those titles, the different

          8  titles.

          9                 First of all, let me say, we will

         10  agree that DCAS may need additional funding, they

         11  may need additional staffing, but, at the same time,

         12  they should deal with the issue of number of exams,

         13  frequency of exams, in a timely manner.  We have

         14  been continuously encouraging DCAS to do the right

         15  thing.  After the list of certified, we also have

         16  been in constant communications with the different

         17  agencies to encourage them to promote and to call

         18  from the list and promote the people.

         19                 I'm not going to take too much time

         20  because I have with me my colleagues here, who have

         21  been experiencing a lot of, and also the people, the

         22  people they work with, have been experiencing some,

         23  some shortcomings or even violations from DCAS in

         24  the different agencies and, with your permission

         25  Chairman, I would like to call on them, so they can
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          2  give their testimonies. All right?  So, who wants to

          3  start?

          4                 MR. FORSTER:  And if I also may add,

          5  I appreciate -- Jon Forster, First Vice- President,

          6  Local 375, and I also want to note the importance of

          7  this, that our Second Vice- President, Michelle

          8  Keller (phonetic) is also here today.  So, we really

          9  have brought out representation for the Local and

         10  with all the issues that I think we're going to talk

         11  about today.

         12                 I think it's very important to hear

         13  the anecdotal information that we have from people

         14  that have actually gone through the process, as well

         15  as an overview presentation from our Membership

         16  Chair, I mean our Civil Service Chair, Josh Barnett.

         17  I think it's also important to note and I just want

         18  to emphasize that yes, we need lots more tests, we

         19  need the tests to be given in a better way.  But, I

         20  would also like to say that I think, with that, DCAS

         21  also needs more funding.  There is a limit to how

         22  much people could do and that is a very real limit.

         23                 I think in order to expand the

         24  capability to address this problem, and to provide

         25  the kinds of tests that really are needed, I would,
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          2  I would speak very strongly in favor of, in fact,

          3  increasing DCAS' budget, so that it has the

          4  capability to deal more effectively with many of the

          5  issues that we're going to raise today.  Thank you.

          6                 MS. EASTMAN:  Liz Eastman, Chapter

          7  38, Local 375, HPD.  Good afternoon Chairman Addabbo

          8  and Members of the Civil Service Committee.  I'm

          9  here, basically, to share with you my experiences at

         10  HPD and also, I guess, speak with them within the

         11  context of also the brand- band issue.

         12                 I began my career at HPD in the

         13  1980's, while still in college.  I spent three

         14  summers working at the agency as a college intern.

         15  My experience as an intern was a catalyst for my

         16  decision to embark on a career in public service.

         17  Six months after graduating from New York

         18  University's Wagner Grad School of Public Service,

         19  with a Master's Degree in Public Administration, I

         20  returned to HPD with visions of having a long,

         21  professional career in the agency.

         22                 Originally, I was hired as a contract

         23  employee.  I became a member of the civil service in

         24  1998, being hired off, after being hired off the

         25  City Planner list, which was created as a result of
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          2  a 1995 City Planners Exam.  After a year as a City

          3  Planner, the opportunity arose to take the Associate

          4  City Planners Exam, which is a promotional exam.  I

          5  passed that exam and was appointed to the title of

          6  Associate City Planner. Unfortunately, despite my

          7  new title, my day to day job duties at the agency

          8  did not change.  I was not afforded the opportunity

          9  to take on new responsibilities within the agency.

         10                 In the hopes of preparing myself to

         11  rise up the ranks within the agency, in 2000, I

         12  participated in Coro's Leadership New York Program

         13  for professionals.  The program trains people

         14  interested in becoming leaders in New York's

         15  private, public and non- profit sectors.  I

         16  completed the program in the spring of 2001.  After

         17  competing the Coro program, I applied to numerous

         18  jobs throughout the agency, in the hopes of taking

         19  on new challenges in my professional career.

         20  Unfortunately, in most instances, the agency opted

         21  to hire someone from outside of the agency to fill

         22  the opening that I had applied for.

         23                 Frustrated at the lack of

         24  professional opportunities within HPD, but still

         25  hopeful for a career, in 2003, I enrolled in the
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          2  Milano Graduate School at New School University, in

          3  pursuit of a Master's Degree in non- profit

          4  management, with a concentration in community

          5  development.  I am a candidate for graduation in

          6  January 2007.

          7                 During my tenure at the Milano

          8  School, I've taken several courses in housing

          9  finance.  Last semester, I was part of a team that

         10  placed third in JP Morgan Chase's National Community

         11  Development Competition.  Our team presented an

         12  innovative development model for the redevelopment

         13  of an abandoned public school building in Harlem.  I

         14  was in charge of developing the finance model for

         15  the affordable housing units that would be provided

         16  to the community as part of our redevelopment

         17  proposal.

         18                 Despite my finance skills and the

         19  fact that HPD has, over the past several months,

         20  hired at least a dozen new people for openings in

         21  the Office of Development, I remain at the same job

         22  that I have had since 1995.

         23                 DCAS' proposal to combine the titles

         24  of City Planner and Associate City Planner hurts, I

         25  believe, hurts civil service workers.  This Local
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          2  has fought against broad- banding for almost 30

          3  years.  In 1979, our leaders argued that broad-

          4  banding subverts civil service law under merit and

          5  fitness.  The intent of civil service law, they said

          6  then, and I believe still exists now, is to remove

          7  from personnel and political influence appointments

          8  and promotions that would be made in accordance with

          9  merit, and have been made in accordance with merit

         10  and fitness.

         11                 Broad- banding still subverts civil

         12  service law today.  Doing away with the Associate

         13  City Planner Exam would allow the City to appoint

         14  people to senior level positions in the City Planner

         15  title without regard to merit and fitness.  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 MS. GARCIA:  Hi.  My name is Elaine

         18  Garcia and I'm here to speak on the issue of broad-

         19  banding for the City Planning titles.  I am

         20  presently the Membership Chair for Local 375.  I was

         21  the Chapter 38 President for Housing Preservation

         22  and Development for nine years.  I presently have

         23  been working for HPD for over 21 years.

         24                 During my tenure as HPD Chapter

         25  President, the major complaints from members has
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          2  been the lack of opportunity for upward mobility.

          3  I'm here to speak against the broad- banding of the

          4  City Planning titles.

          5                 There are fewer opportunities for

          6  advancement.  If broad- banding was to take place

          7  for the titles in the City Planning series, as in

          8  other titles, they had, experienced consolidation.

          9                 Members are stagnated in titles in

         10  lower titles without the opportunity for higher pay.

         11    They applied for the higher title, but are passed

         12  over and most of the time, never called for an

         13  interview.

         14                 I'm going to give you a case study.

         15  A case example, a real case example, a member had

         16  passed the Associate City Planning Test with a high

         17  mark.  She had all the qualifications, a Master

         18  Degree in Planning, over 20 years of experience in

         19  Planning and a good test mark result on the exam.

         20  She was never called off that list, yet people were

         21  placed in that title without meeting the

         22  qualification or actually conducting the functions

         23  of a City Planner.  She waited until the list was

         24  exhausted without being called from the list.  She

         25  retired frustrated and bitter last December 2004.
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          2  She passed away a week later.

          3                 In HPD, there are employees who hold

          4  the title as Associate City Planner that their job

          5  functions have nothing to do with the job

          6  specification of a City Planner, such as working,

          7  their jobs could be working in personnel or

          8  conducting staff analyst job specification.

          9                 Broad- banding will give management

         10  the opportunity to pass over qualified employees for

         11  favorites for the upper titles without having them

         12  take a Civil Service Test.  The Civil Service Law

         13  would be worthless.

         14                 MR. MUELLER:  Good afternoon.  My

         15  name is John Mueller.  I work for the Parks

         16  Department.  I'm a Forester in the Olmstead Center

         17  in Queens.  I handle street tree planting

         18  contractors in Queens.  My testimony here is just

         19  anecdotal. I've been in this position for eight

         20  years.  I was hired on as a City Planning

         21  Technician, because there was no Forester position

         22  available.  This was told to me for four years and I

         23  finally grieved and was awarded a Forester One

         24  title.

         25                 In the eight years I have been in
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          2  this office, I have planted approximately 11,000

          3  street trees in the boroughs of Brooklyn and Queens,

          4  spent about $7 million of the City's money to

          5  contractors, making sure this gets done properly.

          6  It's, it's tough work.  There's never been a, well,

          7  let me rephrase that, the last time there was a

          8  Forester test was in 1992.  I'm still provisional.

          9  A job application came through for a Parks

         10  Supervisor position, but you had to be permanent.

         11  You can't apply if you're still provisional.

         12                 We need to get something done here,

         13  because, as she was saying, we're languishing.  We

         14  just can't move up, we can't move on.  There has

         15  been 30 people in my office in the last eight years

         16  who have come and gone, because there's nowhere to

         17  go.  We have no, you know, we have no, a lot of

         18  people have no choice and we have no chance.  Thank

         19  you.

         20                 MR. BARNETT:  My name is Josh

         21  Barnett.  As I said, I'm the elected Civil Service

         22  Chair for Local 375 and I'm also, the last six

         23  years, I've Construction Project Manager Level Two

         24  with the New York City Housing Authority.

         25                 I submitted my testimony, I'll try
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          2  and abbreviate it, so we can have time for

          3  questions.  Basically, but, what I wanted to say to

          4  try and tie all this together and contrary to what

          5  we heard before with the testimony from DCAS, we

          6  don't see a system that's functioning as it should.

          7  We see a system with a whole lot of problems and

          8  basically a system that's being eroded and a system

          9  in disarray, and it's really not serving either the

         10  workers in this system, the workers that want to get

         11  into this system or the people of the City,

         12  basically.

         13                 I said that when I testified in the

         14  last in favor of the legislation that led to this

         15  report, I said that we face two types of civil

         16  service abuses, abuses of the system and abuses by

         17  the system.  You know, abuses of the system are

         18  violations of the law, but abuses by the system are

         19  when we see abuses that are legal, where things

         20  aren't enforced, where there's no teeth to the

         21  system.

         22                 In my last year and a half as Civil

         23  Service Chair, I get consistent complaints from

         24  people and, as Claude said, we represent almost

         25  7,000 workers, over 36 agencies and authorities, so
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          2  we do, because of the nature of our Local, see the

          3  big picture in terms of what's going on in this

          4  City.  People consistently complain that there are

          5  far too few exams.  People do languish in

          6  provisional status.  It can be years between exams

          7  for many titles.  There are stagnant lists.  Even

          8  when tests are given, there are excessive numbers of

          9  disqualifications.  People do stagnate in levels due

         10  to broad- banding.

         11                 I appreciated your questions and I

         12  don't really feel that they were answered in terms

         13  of people not moving up levels within titles.  Very

         14  infrequent updating of job standards a lot of times.

         15    We, the job standards that I have on my file were

         16  written 30 years ago on a typewriter, they really

         17  don't conform to what's going on now.  It's very

         18  hard to find out who's working in title, who's

         19  working out of title.  So, the exams that are given

         20  wouldn't really apply to current job standards.

         21                 There's a real lack of oversight in

         22  terms of modification of the job standards.  We had

         23  a case where we were modifying the title of Tax Map

         24  Cartographer (phonetic) and we did meet with DCAS,

         25  did put forward a lot of testimony, which was
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          2  ignored, you know, and DCAS modified the title as

          3  they saw fit.

          4                 Anyway, excessive abuses of the one

          5  in three rule, as been said before.  A lot, a lot, a

          6  lot of displacement of civil service workers due to

          7  outsourcing ad privatization because of a lot of

          8  loopholes in the civil service system and a lack of

          9  equal leverage to enforce the system and we, in this

         10  Local, and any local, can give many examples of all

         11  of these abuses in terms of, and I'll give a few.

         12  In terms of too few exams, as the brother said,

         13  there hasn't been an exam for Forester for a long

         14  time.  Graphic Artist, this year, is seeing a test

         15  this year for the first time in 12 years.  There

         16  haven't been exams for the Chemist series in almost

         17  a decade.

         18                 I gave you a spreadsheet that shows

         19  the breakdown of provisional workers in Local 375

         20  and, out of 134 titles that are currently filled,

         21  only 22 have open lists, additional five exams are

         22  given.  When we take away the non-competitive

         23  titles, it means that we're looking at 106 titles

         24  with either no open list or no exam currently

         25  scheduled.  Almost 30 percent of the workers in our
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          2  Local are now provisional.

          3                 As they were saying, DCAS can only do

          4  so much. They only give about 90 to 100 exams a year

          5  and they focus a lot of exams -- we met with

          6  Commissioner Hirst -- they focus on exams that

          7  regard public safety, a lot of uniform exams.  But,

          8  that leaves a lot of other people in the lurch, like

          9  the 260 provisionals in the Associate Project

         10  Manager exam that were still provisional when the

         11  list expired in June.

         12                 Even when exams are given, there are

         13  a lot of disqualifications, as I said.  The lists

         14  take a very long time, often, to be certified.

         15  We're looking usually at 12 to 14 months, sometimes

         16  less.  A Mechanical Engineer took 23 months from the

         17  time the exam was given to the time a list was

         18  certified and you know, they're saying justice

         19  delayed is justice denied, kind of applies here when

         20  people take a test.  They have a right to expect

         21  that they're going to be, have a list certified in a

         22  timely fashion.

         23                 As I said, there are a huge number of

         24  abuses of the civil, of the three, one in three

         25  rule.  People really usually don't even know why and
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          2  they're not informed a lot of time.  Even when they

          3  are, they have no recourse because they're not

          4  really sure why they have been passed over.

          5                 Again, lists die with provisionals

          6  still on it. We were very frustrated in the Local,

          7  again harping on this, about the Associate Project

          8  Manager list, which had over 250 provisionals at the

          9  Transit Authority.  DCAS did inform them about that

         10  and because the law has very little legal teeth to

         11  get them to move a stagnant list, the TA sat on the

         12  list while it expired.

         13                 Now that it has expired, there's

         14  nothing, basically, that we can do.  Several members

         15  have come up to us and said, can't we sue them?  You

         16  know, assuming that there's some kind of civil

         17  recourse, criminal recourse.  No, when the list

         18  dies, it dies and they're liability dies with it.

         19  That's one case where the law definitely does need

         20  to be beefed up and given some teeth.

         21                 As everybody said, including Elaine,

         22  broad- banding has really, really worked against the

         23  intent and letter of civil service law.  I got a

         24  call from one woman, who's a Mechanical Engineer,

         25  Civil Service, at DOT, and she's been Level One for
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          2  22 years.  You know, she has civil service status,

          3  that gives her a little job security.  Yes, she's

          4  grateful for that, but she has seen in her title,

          5  bringing kids off the street, you know, with, in

          6  provisional status at a higher level and higher pay.

          7    We see that at every agency and that's when

          8  they're not bringing in consultants doing the same

          9  work that we see a lot.

         10                 Touching on that at my agency at the

         11  Housing Authority, we see agencies completely

         12  bypassing the civil service process.  There was a

         13  contract at the Housing Authority that hired

         14  architects and engineers on a per diem basis through

         15  an employment agency in Pennsylvania.  For up to

         16  five years, people were working side by side with

         17  our people, doing the exact same work, but being

         18  paid more because of the agency's hiring fee, at a

         19  higher cost to the tax payer, while we train these

         20  people.

         21                 They had no health benefits, no

         22  security, they didn't even get paid for 9/11, and

         23  they only cancelled the contract when we threatened

         24  to go public with it.  We still don't know what it

         25  cost, because they wouldn't give us a copy of the
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          2  contract.  So, outsourcing and violation of civil

          3  service is something that we see at every agency.

          4                 There have been cuts at every agency,

          5  but when there are cuts in DCAS, it has a

          6  disproportionate effect on the ability of people to

          7  enter the civil service system and stay in the civil

          8  service system.  So, DCAS needs funding, the law and

          9  all of these issues needs greater teeth.  DCAS needs

         10  greater oversight and we'll end on one last point,

         11  that I could go on about.

         12                 Look at the big picture that does

         13  relate here, what's happening to the erosion of the

         14  civil service system here is not happening in a

         15  vacuum.  We do see an attack on basic civil

         16  services, social services and civil service around

         17  the country. Last year, and I think this is very

         18  relevant, three different states, public workers in

         19  three different states, lost their collective

         20  bargaining rights.  We see at the Federal level,

         21  attempts by the Bush Administration with predictable

         22  capitulation of the Democrats now to lose basic

         23  civil service rights, including the right to an

         24  impartial hearing, including the right to an

         25  automatic step pay, which the Feds traditionally
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          2  had, which City workers didn't.

          3                 Even regarding Hurricane Katrina, we

          4  saw the violation of prevailing wages that was

          5  repealed, which is a really despicable act.  All

          6  this has an effect on the local level when we see

          7  the fact that there, there is money, but the money

          8  ain't going down, it's going up.

          9                 We see $300 billion going to the

         10  savage oil war. We see corporate welfare, the

         11  Goldman Sachs and the Jets.  We don't expect you to

         12  end the war in Iraq, but we do think that when we

         13  ask the City Council to beef up civil service law,

         14  we know we're asking you to swim up stream, bucking

         15  the national trend of taking away social services

         16  and civil service.  But, we still think it's

         17  necessary for the workers in the system, the workers

         18  that want to enter the system and the people of the

         19  City that need this kind of basic, basic social

         20  services.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You sure that's

         22  it?

         23                 MR. BARNETT:  That's it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  All right.

         25                 MR. BARNETT:  Yes, yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I was getting

          3  concerned there, you weren't breathing.  No, Josh,

          4  good to see you.  I appreciate your time and

          5  testimony.  I appreciate all your time and

          6  testimony.  Before I get to questions that I may

          7  have, I just want to remind you that back in May of

          8  2004, there was testimony such as that given today

          9  that created this ground breaking report from DCAS,

         10  because it spurred legislation that, again, we were

         11  able to work with DCAS on, creating this report.

         12  So, again, your time here is time well spent, and I

         13  appreciate it.

         14                 Just a couple of questions and in the

         15  order of which I heard them and I wrote them down.

         16  Obviously, you heard frequency of the exams is an

         17  issue that I will address post this Hearing, after

         18  this Hearing, with DCAS and, hopefully, address that

         19  issue.  I appreciate, you know, giving me some

         20  information on, you know, Forester and others that

         21  have not been given.  And, you heard previously by

         22  DCAS, in the testimony, that five years is usually a

         23  reasonable period of time.  There are many that have

         24  not been given five, ten, 15, 20 years, so, probably

         25  not 20, but at least five or ten years.  So, the
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          2  bottom line is we will address that subsequent to

          3  this Hearing.

          4                 As far as more funding for DCAS, I

          5  don't think you'll have any opposition to that from

          6  DCAS at all.  I think DCAS would certainly welcome

          7  the funding.  But, that is, and I'm so happy to hear

          8  that in a sense that, obviously, we don't know what

          9  the upcoming fiscal budget, fiscal year  '07 will

         10  bring us. You know, we are looking at a slight

         11  deficit, certainly nothing in the lines of what we

         12  experienced a couple of years ago, a $6 billion

         13  deficit, but, we are experiencing a deficit.  But,

         14  if we can see that we can, you know, invest in an

         15  agency like DCAS and make this, you know,

         16  government, as well as the lives of many residents

         17  improved because of a certain investment of money

         18  into an agency like DCAS, certainly it's money well

         19  spent.

         20                 So, I appreciate that suggestion and

         21  there's my key point.  I love the fact that you

         22  didn't just sit here and complain about a situation,

         23  you gave a suggestion, such as more funding for

         24  DCAS.  Is there any other suggestion out there, for

         25  any of the issues that you brought up?  Are there
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          2  any other suggestions how to either correct this

          3  situation with regard to promotions and hiring or

          4  based on, again, maybe not today, you may contact my

          5  office after today, because something may come up,

          6  but I'll offer you this, right now, if you have any

          7  other suggestions how to address certain of the

          8  issues that you had mentioned?

          9                 MR. FORSTER:  I just would like --

         10  Jon Forster, again, First Vice- President, you

         11  actually asked some important questions of DCAS and

         12  I found some of their answers actually interesting,

         13  but to the extent that they do have the power to

         14  address things like an inordinate number of

         15  provisionals that are in an agency.  I mean, and not

         16  just in a particular title, but overall in an

         17  agency.

         18                 I think that the report that now is

         19  generated is a result of your legislative effort, I

         20  think will now more starkly show that, and I do

         21  think it will raise a red flag.  I think it's really

         22  incumbent on DCAS to now go back to those agencies

         23  and say, we can no longer continue to operate this

         24  way with this number of provisionals.  I think there

         25  are several issues like that that the report, I
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          2  think, will identify and I'm asking that DCAS be

          3  more proactive in terms of tracking these down.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Obviously, that

          5  was a major issue, again, with the testimony that

          6  DCAS had given earlier. That's an issue that we're

          7  going to take up after this Hearing. Again, I want

          8  to thank DCAS for remaining in the room, because

          9  many times at these Hearings the Administration

         10  speaks and possibly leaves.  You know, DCAS is still

         11  here and again, I appreciate their time here,

         12  because this is how we can constructively and

         13  credibly follow- up on some of these issues.

         14                 MR. FORSTER:  If I may, just one last

         15  thing, which is on the broad- banding issue too.  I

         16  mean, I think that the idea of broad- banding may

         17  have been well conceived, that it came out of a good

         18  place, not a bad malicious place.  But, the reality

         19  is that, in fact, it has not been used in the way it

         20  was intended to be used by the agencies, and they're

         21  not moving people up through the levels and,

         22  therefore, I would say, let's put the brakes on

         23  broad- banding at this point.  We might even think

         24  about rolling it back, but at least put the brakes

         25  on it until we have a much better sense of how it's
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          2  been used or not used.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  On the issue of

          4  broad banding, since that was my next point, I will

          5  offer you this, that, you know, this Committee will

          6  have a separate Hearing on broad- banding, because I

          7  believe it's an issue worthy enough to have a

          8  separate issue, not to be lumped in with this

          9  Hearing. Why?  Because, in my opinion, it affects

         10  the morale, it affects the work product of workers

         11  throughout the City and if you're affecting the work

         12  product and the morale and the incentives of those

         13  workers, therefore, the quality of their work is

         14  affected and, ultimately, as a direct result, the

         15  quality of life in the City.

         16                 So, we need to obviously address that

         17  issue, you know, and it's sub- issues of outsourcing

         18  and all those other issues that, you know, come

         19  along with broad- banding.  But, the bottom line is,

         20  to discuss it and address it and hopefully resolve

         21  it now, before there is a severe deterioration of

         22  quality of life in this City because of the quality

         23  of work that's being deteriorated because of this

         24  issue.  So, I assure you we'll be using a separate

         25  Hearing for the broad- banding issue as well.
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          2                 You had mentioned, somebody on this

          3  panel had mentioned meetings with DCAS.  I also

          4  think that is very helpful to you and your issues.

          5  You know, again, I'd love to have you here, but you

          6  don't have to wait for a Civil Service and Labor

          7  Committee Hearing to address these issues, and if I

          8  could be of any help, you let me know.

          9                 But, the discussions that you have

         10  directly with DCAS, as long as, again, they have the

         11  open door and give you their time, which I think it

         12  helpful to them as well.  I was happy to hear that

         13  you had mentioned that you had sat down with DCAS to

         14  address some of the issue and I think that will be

         15  helpful in the future as well.

         16                 MR. FORT:  Yes we did meet with DCAS

         17  and we are requesting another meeting.  Hopefully

         18  we'll get it soon.  We'll be pleased to work on a

         19  number of suggestions too that we'll submit to your

         20  office.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Please, again,

         22  we are opening the door here at this Hearing.  This

         23  is definitely not the end of the discussion.

         24                 MR. BARNETT:  Yeah, I have two and

         25  I'm passing on one for Michelle Keller and I'll be
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          2  brief.  That, first that, I know this will come up

          3  on the broad- banding, but if there was what had

          4  been an automatic step pay system instead of leaving

          5  promotion at the discretion of management, that

          6  would alleviate a lot of problems.  That's one of

          7  our perennial contract demands, but if we can also

          8  enforce that legislatively, which has been done

          9  elsewhere, that would go a long way.

         10                 Again, in terms of outside

         11  consultants, one demand that we're pushing for now

         12  in the contract with the Housing Authority, is that

         13  when we do see a situation where consultants are

         14  working side by side, that the agency only be

         15  allowed to make such a hire on an emergency basis

         16  for up to 90 days.  After that, they have to offer

         17  somebody a provisional appointment.  Again, that's

         18  been enacted elsewhere with varying degrees of

         19  success and --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Josh, if I may

         21  just stop you right there before you get to your

         22  second point.  When you say legislation elsewhere,

         23  enacted elsewhere, can you be more specific?  Do you

         24  know of certain places, cities, large cities that

         25  that has been enacted?
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          2                 MR. BARNETT:  It's been, it was

          3  fought for by some of the, I know, because a friend

          4  of mine is a labor lawyer in Detroit, by some of the

          5  municipal, municipal unions in Michigan, actually

          6  did fight for this, by just basically signing up

          7  people for the union after 90 days and telling the

          8  agency, take us to court if you don't like it, you

          9  know, because it was an outright violation of civil

         10  service.

         11                 Then, what Michelle just passed on I

         12  think is excellent, is education on the part of

         13  management as to civil service and its importance.

         14  Because, a lot of times, we see managers come to the

         15  table believing that the corporate paradigm is much

         16  more efficient in providing service than the civil

         17  service paradigm, you know, so long as we emulate

         18  business, we'll get service.  But, don't, you might

         19  not know the history of civil service and what we

         20  provide.  So, I think that that's an excellent

         21  suggestion.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That is and

         23  definitely taken under consideration by this

         24  Committee.  Ladies and gentlemen, thanking you very

         25  much for your time and testimony today.
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          2                 MR. FORSTER:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Really

          4  appreciate your time, thank you.  Our next two

          5  individuals for the next panel is Arthur Schwartz

          6  for Roger Toussaint, Arthur, please step forward,

          7  and Vernon Thorpe, Vernon.  Thank you for being here

          8  today.  If you just please state your name for the

          9  record and your specific title and affiliation and

         10  then give your testimony.

         11                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  My name is, my name is

         12  Arthur Schwartz.  I'm Counsel to Local 100 Transport

         13  Workers Union, and seated to my right is Vernon

         14  Thorpe, who's the Legislative Director for Local

         15  100.

         16                 We actually had two of us prepare

         17  testimony, so you're getting two different sheets

         18  that I'm going to try to present them both, because

         19  they actually touched on two different, on different

         20  issues.

         21                 Mr. Chairman and Members of the

         22  Committee, the steps taken by the City Council last

         23  year to require a report from DCAS concerning

         24  provisional appointments, civil service examinations

         25  and eligible lists was an important first step in
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          2  the direction of rectifying deep rooted problems in

          3  our civil service system.  There remain many

          4  problems to resolve.

          5                 Transit Authority employees may not

          6  be City employees, but their employment is governed

          7  by the New York City Civil Service Law.  As such,

          8  exams for our jobs, both promotional and open-

          9  competitive are administered by DCAS.  The rules

         10  governing provisional employees at Transit are

         11  governed by the New York City Civil Service Law.

         12                 In our bargaining unit, which

         13  includes all non supervisory operating and

         14  maintenance employees of the TA, there are over 110

         15  provisionals, all grouped into four titles.  The

         16  Transit Authority has a practice of maintaining

         17  employees in provisional titles for many, many

         18  years, even though they have take exams and appear

         19  on lists of eligible employees.

         20                 In other words, the TA does not hire

         21  certain provisional employees as permanent employees

         22  and, instead, skips over them, exercising the one in

         23  three rule, but maintaining these employees in

         24  provisional status.  As a result, they have no

         25  access to our contractual disciplinary appeal
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          2  procedure and are subject to the whims of

          3  supervisors or managers.

          4                 We recently had an arbitration award

          5  with an individual who was in his fifth year, who

          6  was terminated peremptory because he had a DWI

          7  arrest off the job and he, it was ruled that since

          8  he was provisional, he didn't have any access to

          9  any, to any sort of appeal procedure.

         10                 For example, we have dozens, we have

         11  a dozen employees who were hired as Air Brake

         12  Maintainers, provisionally, prior to 1999.  In 1999,

         13  all 12 took and passed Competitive Open Exam Number

         14  8055, a list which continued in existence until at

         15  least 2004.  In 2000, the TA told the 12 that they

         16  would be appointed as permanent ABMs.  This did not

         17  happen.

         18                 In 2001, the ABM title was broad-

         19  banded into the title of Car Inspector.  The TA

         20  reneged on its promise and took the position that

         21  the ABM list was no longer in existence, even though

         22  they asked for the list to be extended until 2004.

         23  A demand for the employees, a demand from the

         24  employees that they become permanent under Section

         25  65, Subsection Four of the Civil Service Law, which

                                                            76

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR

          2  provides for permanent status where a list is

          3  inadequate to fill all positions, fill all positions

          4  held on a provisional, then held on a provisional

          5  basis, was denied.

          6                 Instead, the TA hired more

          7  provisionals.  The TA argued that there is no longer

          8  an ABM position and that all subway car maintainers

          9  are Car Inspectors.  According to the report being

         10  considered today, the TA has not created a Car

         11  Inspector eligibility list since March 2002.  This

         12  type of problem needs to be addressed.  More teeth

         13  need to be added to Section 65(4), so that employees

         14  on lists, who are provisionals, can address the

         15  problems of staying in provisional status for years

         16  on end.

         17                 One aspect of the problem can easily

         18  be addressed by an amendment to the Civil Service

         19  Law, which would give provisionals who are on

         20  eligibility lists, but who haven't been appointed

         21  access to appeal procedures, to challenge

         22  disciplinary actions.  Such a right exists by

         23  contract in several bargaining units.  I believe the

         24  City- wide agreement has it for DC- 37 employees.

         25  There is no reason that that right cannot be
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          2  extended to all provisionals employed in agencies

          3  covered by the New York City Civil Service Law.

          4                 Another aspect of this problem can

          5  also be addressed.  We recently had a situation

          6  where one of the provisional ABMs, who I just

          7  discussed, named David Aviles, became injured on the

          8  job,  He was in his sixth year of provisional

          9  employment.  Before running out his time under

         10  Section 71, he asked to be reclassified.  The TA

         11  agreed and made him a Transit Property Protection

         12  Agent or TPPA.

         13                 However, a month later, the TA

         14  notified the employee that he couldn't be

         15  reclassified because he didn't hold a permanent

         16  title.  As a result, he was terminated.  Union

         17  intervention saved his job, but this should, and

         18  returned, actually, as a provisional ABM, but this

         19  should not have happened.  The law should be amended

         20  so as to allow, either to allow provisional

         21  employees injured on the job to be hired without

         22  being on a list into permanent civil service titles,

         23  or mandating that they be employed provisionally in

         24  a new title which addresses their work restrictions.

         25                 A second type of problem we have
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          2  faced with DCAS is a drive to eliminate promotional

          3  opportunities.  For example, historically, station

          4  cleaners were eligible to take promotional exams to

          5  become token booth clerks, a title now known as

          6  station agent.  After 40 years of such a practice,

          7  over the objection of both the union and the TA,

          8  DCAS cancelled the station agent promotional exam

          9  and decided that cleaners do not have sufficient

         10  job- related experience to become station agents.

         11                 Even when advised that they were

         12  acting on misinformation about the responsibility of

         13  station cleaners, we're talking about 1,500 people,

         14  DCAS refused to budge.  Local 100 has brought suit

         15  and we await a decision.  However, this is not the

         16  only time that this has occurred.  DCAS has

         17  significantly cut off promotional opportunities over

         18  the past few years for TPPAs and station agents who

         19  could no longer take conductor and train operator

         20  promotional exams and other titles.

         21                 DCAS' counsel has told union counsel

         22  that DCAS' present leadership does not like

         23  promotional examinations and is looking to do away

         24  with them.  This is wrong.  It denies present

         25  employees the opportunity to look at employment with
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          2  the Transit Authority as an opportunity to grow and

          3  build a career.  We ask the Council to address such

          4  narrow mindedness and prohibit its growth.

          5                 Several years back, this is a related

          6  issue, DCAS took a, an action which removed the

          7  cleaner position from the competitive civil service,

          8  from being a competitive civil service title.  Over

          9  a thousand positions were taken out of competitive

         10  status and, as a result, new employees who have been

         11  hired into those positions have been severed from

         12  the promotional ladder entirely.

         13                 Traditionally, many employees enter

         14  the transit system as cleaners.  Some to serve a

         15  full career in those titles and others to advance up

         16  the promotional ladder to other titles. Several of

         17  the top managers of the transit system, including

         18  the Vice- President for Human Resources, began as

         19  cleaners, as did Roger Toussaint, the President of

         20  Local 100 and the Director of the Joint New York

         21  City Local 100 Training Fund, as well as other

         22  officials.

         23                 Today, not, as I said, this removed

         24  about a thousand positions from the, the promotional

         25  ladder.  This flies in the face of civil service
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          2  tradition and is profoundly wrong. We request that

          3  the City Council consider restoring or asking DCAS

          4  to restore the cleaner title as a competitive

          5  position, along with its intended right to sit for

          6  various promotional exams.

          7                 Finally, there is a problem of DCAS

          8  recognizing the role of unions in the development of

          9  new titles, new job descriptions or broad- banding

         10  proposed by employing agencies. Unions must have

         11  input.  DCAS cannot be used as a means to get around

         12  a collective bargaining obligation.

         13                 In 2005, after making a proposal to

         14  Local 100 about broad- banding electrical equipment

         15  maintainer title and the revenue equipment

         16  maintainer title, and having that proposal rejected,

         17  the TA took their proposal to DCAS.  Luckily, Local

         18  100 got wind of it and complained to DCAS, which

         19  agreed not to proceed until the TA discussed the

         20  proposal at greater length with Local 100.

         21                 Unions should not have to be lucky to

         22  avoid these situations.  DCAS ought to be required

         23  by law to refrain from changing any specification

         24  involving a title, which has union representation,

         25  unless the union and employing agency have reached
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          2  an agreement on the change in question.  The civil

          3  service system should not be utilized as a means to

          4  evade collective bargaining or as a tool to get what

          5  management cannot win at the bargaining table.

          6                 Finally, we have experienced a

          7  collaboration between DCAS and the Transit

          8  Authority, to produce titles which are not subject

          9  to exam, where there is hiring by portfolio, which

         10  we believe is simply hiring at the whim at higher

         11  managers. An example of this is the title

         12  telecommunications specialist. Impressive although

         13  the title may sound, a large part of the work

         14  performed in this title has been to lay and maintain

         15  fiber optic cable.  One of the hiring qualifications

         16  is a college diploma, yet the diploma can be in any

         17  field.  In a hearing on this title, one hiree (sic)

         18  was found to have a degree in sociology.

         19                 There are Transit employees in long-

         20  standing civil service titles who lay and maintain

         21  cable of various sorts, including the first

         22  generation of fiber optic cable in the subway

         23  system.  The creation of this new title not only

         24  weakens the civil service structure, it threatens to

         25  take work formerly performed by union members out of
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          2  union hands.  We believe that Transit management and

          3  DCAS have collaborated to create a non union zone of

          4  work where the label of high technology can be

          5  invoked.  A zone that includes work formerly done by

          6  Local 100 members or analogous to work performed by

          7  Local 100 members.

          8                 Where technological changes alter our

          9  work, we are certainly willing to discuss the

         10  creation of new titles along the promotional ladder,

         11  but we remain unalterably opposed to using new

         12  technology as an excuse for taking work out of

         13  competitive status off the promotion ladder and out

         14  of union hands.  When new technology enters, our

         15  proposal is that any work that the union must be

         16  consulted upon the creation of new titles for that

         17  work and that new titles become rungs on the civil

         18  service promotional ladder.  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you Mr.

         20  Schwartz.  Mr. Thorpe, do you want to?

         21                 MR. THORPE:  Oh, no.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  That's all

         23  together, right? Okay.

         24                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Mr. Thorpe is a

         25  cleaner as well, by the way.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.

          3                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Was a cleaner, is a

          4  cleaner.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I appreciate

          6  you both being here.  Just a couple of questions I

          7  have, based on your testimony, Mr. Schwartz.  The

          8  administrative body, even though, again, you

          9  mentioned earlier you're not City employees, but the

         10  administrative agency is DCAS, correct?

         11                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Although you're

         13  not City employees, technically, as per your

         14  testimony, you know, for the jurisdiction of this

         15  Committee, I look at the term Civil Service and

         16  Labor, the labor part of this Committee title has a

         17  very broad interpretation of that word.  So, again,

         18  I welcome all labor issues and obviously, the issues

         19  of its workers.  So, I appreciate your time here

         20  today.

         21                 You said there's a lawsuit pending

         22  involving DCAS?

         23                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Can you just go

         25  into that, about, you know, the status of that
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          2  lawsuit?  Again, because it's pending, I understand

          3  you may not be able to get into the particulars --

          4                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  No, I can get into the

          5  particulars. It's all briefed --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  If you can,

          7  briefly.

          8                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  That addressed the

          9  decision by DCAS to cancel the promotional exam for

         10  station agent in 2004.  It had been scheduled and

         11  the only, I believe that the only parties that were

         12  generally eligible to take that exam in the past

         13  were cleaners, station cleaners who work in the

         14  stations and, historically, relieve stations agents

         15  when they have to go to the bathroom, when there are

         16  other problems in the system, work with the station

         17  agent to, with various problems in the system and

         18  are certainly familiar with the ins and outs of

         19  every single station in the system.

         20                 For 40 years, that was the route,

         21  that was the promotional route.  In fact, cleaners

         22  could promote to station agents and then station

         23  agents could, were able to take promotional exams

         24  and go up to conductor and train operator positions.

         25    Certainly, as promotional, the promotional lists
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          2  had priority over the open- competitive lists and

          3  these were very, this was a very important path up

          4  the, the career ladder for Transit workers.

          5                 In 2004, DCAS decided that, DCAS

          6  decided that the experience of station cleaners

          7  wasn't sufficient, didn't have a sufficient nexus to

          8  the work of a station agent, to warrant a

          9  promotional exam and simply canceled it out.  When

         10  we sued in court, we brought an Article 78

         11  proceeding over, over that action and they said

         12  that, that it had come to their attention that, in

         13  fact, station cleaners did not relieve station

         14  agents in the booths, which was inaccurate.

         15                 They, we were actually joined in our

         16  opposition to that by the Transit Authority, one of

         17  those, one of those rare times when the union and

         18  the Transit Authority is on the, on the same page.

         19  Kevin Highland (phonetic), the Director of

         20  Employment Relations for, the Vice- President of

         21  Employment Relations for the Transit Authority had

         22  written to DCAS, a long letter, explaining all the

         23  ways in which station cleaners were prepared better

         24  than members of the general public to work as

         25  station agents.
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          2                 We informed DCAS, through the

          3  litigation, we provided testimony of numerous

          4  station, cleaners and station agents, that cleaners

          5  continue to relieve station agents and they did not

          6  back off from their position and we're waiting for a

          7  decision from Judge Doris Ling Cohen (phonetic) at

          8  the moment.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Mr. Schwartz --

         10                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  It's been pending for

         11  about a year, unfortunately.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  The Article 78

         13  proceeding was filed when?  Do you remember roughly?

         14                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Roughly, April 2004.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  April 2004? And

         16   --

         17                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah, probably the

         18  briefing was completed around September 2004.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  It's pending

         20  and you're awaiting judgment, correct?

         21                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  You

         23  mentioned, obviously, a number of issues with DCAS.

         24  How did you address DCAS removing of titles?  You

         25  mentioned that they had done that, but how did you
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          2  address it as, you know, for your membership?

          3                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  DCAS --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  You said, if

          5  I'm not mistaken, you had mentioned that DCAS had

          6  removed certain titles?

          7                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  How did you

          9  address that? Did you address it with DCAS at all?

         10                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yeah.  Well, we wrote

         11  to, certainly before we sued them, we, we wrote to

         12  them, called them, and, the way we found out about

         13  it was, in fact, the list, the exam had been posted

         14  on the net and people sent in their application

         15  money and then they got letters back saying that the

         16  test had been canceled.  So, we actually, the way we

         17  found out about it wasn't that DCAS contacted the

         18  union and said, this is what we're thinking about

         19  doing.  Our members got letters back saying, here's

         20  your $50.00, sorry, we're not giving this exam.  So,

         21  we heard about it from the members.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Prior to the

         23  Article 78 proceeding, you mentioned conversations,

         24  letters with DCAS, correct?

         25                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  On the issues

          3  that you raised in your testimony, do you feel that

          4  DCAS is acceptable to the idea of sitting down and,

          5  similar to the testimony you heard previous, on the

          6  previous panel, sitting down with DCAS, you know,

          7  addressing these issues and coming to some resolve?

          8  Do you feel you have that kind of working

          9  relationship with DCAS, where, in the future, you

         10  can call upon them to sit down and address the

         11  issues?

         12                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Well, I think it,

         13  we've had a mixed experience.  With respect to these

         14  promotional exams, they've been very unresponsive.

         15  As I said, we wind up having more affinity with the

         16  Transit Authority, which I think likes to see, they

         17  want people to come to Transit and look at it as a

         18  career, not as one job and then they're moving onto

         19  another job.  And, we've had a harder time with DCAS

         20  in creating various promotional lines than we've had

         21  convincing the Transit Authority to go along with

         22  doing that.

         23                 In terms of the broad- banding, we

         24  did recently, the example I gave you, we found out

         25  about it and when we contacted DCAS and said, hey,
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          2  you know, this is something that the TA raised in

          3  contract negotiations, you can't just give it to

          4  them.  They acceded to our request and notified us

          5  that they would wait until the Transit Authority

          6  discussed it with us. They didn't assure us that

          7  they wouldn't do it.  They just said, okay, we're

          8  sending it back to you guys.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  I'm hopeful

         10  that, in the future, obviously, the relationship

         11  between your membership and DCAS improves.  With

         12  regard to the issues that need to be addressed and

         13  as far as the broad- banding issues that you did

         14  bring up, like I mentioned earlier, I'd love to have

         15  you back here, you know, as we do a separate Hearing

         16  on that issue. Gentlemen, if there is no other

         17  further statement, I really appreciate your time and

         18  testimony today.

         19                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. THORPE:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you.  Our

         22  last panel for today, Mr. Robert Troeller.  Mr.

         23  Troeller, Local 891.

         24                 MR. TROELLER:  Good afternoon.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Good to see
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          2  you.

          3                 MR. TROELLER:  My name is Robert

          4  Troeller.  As President of Local 891, International

          5  Union of Operating Engineers.  I represent the 950

          6  school custodian engineers who are responsible for

          7  assuring that our children have a clean and safe

          8  place to learn each day.  And, believe me when I

          9  tell you, my members take their job very seriously.

         10                 Without an ongoing schedule of civil

         11  service exams, their job becomes much harder.  My

         12  union, like many other public sector unions in the

         13  City and around this country have often been the

         14  brunt of unfair public criticism that is the direct

         15  result of the failure of the civil service

         16  commissions around this country to schedule enough

         17  civil service exams.

         18                 One obvious result of the civil

         19  service test not being scheduled frequently enough

         20  is not having a list of qualified candidates, which

         21  often results in excess overtime or, as in the case

         22  of my members, one person being assigned to multiple

         23  assignments.  The press then likes to point at the

         24  workers and the union as the culprit as somehow

         25  bilking the public with their excess salary, when,
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          2  in reality, those workers are being forced to cover

          3  the jobs of two people.

          4                 In the case of school custodian

          5  engineers, the need for frequent testing is even

          6  more critical than some other titles.  Everyone

          7  involved in the school system in New York, including

          8  school Chancellor Klein, principals, parents and

          9  teachers, agree that each school needs to have a

         10  responsible man or woman in charge of the schools'

         11  facility operations.  Having one CE run back and

         12  forth between schools should only be used as a

         13  short- term solution to fill a temporary vacancy.

         14  It cannot be a standard method of operation and

         15  having a contractor care for a whole group of

         16  schools has proven to be flat out dangerous and

         17  economically wasteful.

         18                 History has proven that conducting a

         19  competitive civil service exam is the best way to

         20  ensure that a person with the proper experience,

         21  training, and credentials necessary to run a school,

         22  a building as complicated as a New York City school

         23  building, is the person who has that job.  The

         24  children of our City deserve nothing less.

         25                 Without regularly scheduled tests,
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          2  the DOE will never have enough qualified candidates

          3  to safely run our schools. Unfortunately, a person

          4  meeting the requirements of this job will usually be

          5  able to find higher paying jobs in the private

          6  sector. The low starting salary for custodian

          7  engineers makes it difficult to attract candidates.

          8                 But, just as kids need qualified

          9  teachers, they deserve qualified engineers.

         10  Lowering job standards is not an option.  The last

         11  test given for the broad- banded title of custodian

         12  engineer level one/level two was in June of 2004.

         13  An eligibility list was established one year later

         14  in June of 2005. Prior to that, a test had not been

         15  given since 1997.

         16                 To their credit, the Department of

         17  Education's DSF uses the one in three rule very

         18  judiciously, unlike some of the testimony I heard

         19  from my colleagues.  They really use that rule

         20  pretty fairly and very infrequently.  With that

         21  said, the list was established just four/five months

         22  ago, they've called from it several times and,

         23  unfortunately, they've nearly exhausted all the

         24  qualified candidates with the license on that list.

         25                 Prior to that, they, prior to broad-
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          2  banding, they used to give a separate exam for

          3  licensed engineers and non licensed.  Now that

          4  they've broad- banded, they created a situation

          5  where the list gets established and they very

          6  quickly go through the list, and what they're left

          7  with, is a bunch of unlicensed candidates for the

          8  lower level positions and no qualified candidates

          9  for the higher positions, which means the only way

         10  they can fill positions in the higher level is

         11  through promotional, which we have developed an in-

         12  service training with the Department, which creates

         13  a lot of qualified candidates for that, or

         14  provisional appointments, which, again, there aren't

         15  many of, due to the starting salary reduction.

         16                 So, the one thing I'm really here to

         17  say today is, you know, to try to help push DCAS to

         18  give more tests.  Once every seven years is just not

         19  enough, you know.  Once very four or five years,

         20  that took place prior to that, is not enough. Once

         21  you broad- banded the title, you created a situation

         22  where you now have a hard to fill position, a

         23  licensed position, and you have to give that test,

         24  you know, every two years.

         25                 The test was given a year and a half
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          2  ago, the qualified candidates have already been used

          3  up.  They know people are about to retire.  They

          4  know people will continue to retire. People will

          5  continue to move on.  They know vacancies will

          6  exist, but there will be no mechanism to fill those

          7  vacancies.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you Mr.

          9  Troeller.  A couple of things in your testimony.

         10  Number one, I'm very happy to hear that the

         11  Department of Education has used the one in three

         12  rule adequately.  With regard to the frequency of

         13  the exams, obviously, there was testimony given

         14  earlier and that is an issue that we will be

         15  addressing with DCAS subsequent to this Hearing, as

         16  is the broad- banding issue, obviously that has a

         17  direct correlation to the frequency of the exams.

         18  So, therefore, that will be at a future Hearing as

         19  well, prior to the end of this year.

         20                 That is your main suggestion, right?

         21  That obviously, you know, with the frequency of the

         22  exams, when you, when an exam is given, it's

         23  exhausted pretty quickly I see.

         24                 MR. TROELLER:  Yeah, the, well,

         25  again, when it was two separate exams, they would
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          2  give the engineer part much more frequently, because

          3  they knew that that position, you know, was hard to

          4  fill and people with those credentials would move on

          5  to other jobs, so they would have to give that test

          6  part.  The other position with less credentials, the

          7  list would last longer and they can draw from it for

          8  a longer period of time.

          9                 But, once they broad- banded it, you

         10  know, the requirement to give that test more often,

         11  that, that was created, that condition.  And,

         12  unfortunately, they actually lengthened the period

         13  of time between tests.  So, they broad- banded and

         14  they lengthened the period of time between tests.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Obviously,

         16  that's going to be a major issue that we're going to

         17  have to address.  And, that is, again, your main

         18  concern and your main suggestion, obviously, to

         19  decrease the whole broad- banding idea and increase

         20  the amount of exams, correct?

         21                 MR. TROELLER:  Correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Okay.  Mr.

         23  Troeller, again, it's good to see you and I

         24  appreciate your time and testimony today.

         25                 MR. TROELLER:  Thank you Councilman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO:  Thank you very

          3  much.  Seeing that there are no other witnesses, I

          4  want to again thank all of you for being here today.

          5    Again, the first of part of this Hearing, we did

          6  pass Intro. 730, which will extend health care

          7  benefits to the deceased member of the DOT worker

          8  and that surviving family.

          9                 I just want to mention that earlier

         10  in the year I had introduced and this Committee held

         11  a Hearing on Intro. 286, would have extended the

         12  health care insurance coverage to surviving spouses,

         13  domestic partners, and children of all City

         14  employees who passed away in the line of duty.  I'm

         15  still hopeful that this Committee, myself and the

         16  Administration can entertain this Intro., because

         17  it's a more expedient way of getting the coverage to

         18  these families.  So, if we could do it for all City

         19  employees who pass away in the line of duty, I think

         20  that is the better way to go.  I am hopeful the

         21  Administration see that as well.

         22                 With regard to this report from DCAS,

         23  obviously issues even raised here today in light of

         24  that first report, I will be looking forward to

         25  speaking to DCAS and, again, I appreciate DCAS
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          2  hanging around here at this Hearing to hear the

          3  issues that came up subsequent to their testimony.

          4  So, thank you very much, I appreciate you staying

          5  here.  Thank you very much ladies and gentlemen,

          6  have a great day.  Thank you.

          7                 (Meeting adjourned at 3:00 p.m.)
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